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WHITE AND COMPANY, P.S.C.
Certified Public Accountants
219 South Proctor Knott Avenue
Lebanon, Kentucky 40033
(270) 692-2102
(270) 692-3615
Fax (270) 692-2101

Charles M. White, CPA Email cmwcpa@windstream.net

September 24, 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Members of the Board of Education
Marion County School District
Lebanon, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying financial staténafithe governmental activities, the businesgtyp
activities, the aggregate discretely presented oot units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Marion County $ohDistrict as of and for the year ended June 30,
2012, which collectively comprise the District’s doa financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the megplity of Marion County School District's
management. Our responsibility is to express opgon these financial statements based on out. audi

We conducted our audit in accordance with audistagndards generally accepted in the United Stdtes o
America and the standards applicable to finanaigita contained inGovernment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedeStand the provisions of OMB Circular A-138ydits

of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgations, Appendix | to the Independent Auditor’s
Contract — General Audit Requirements, Appendte the Independent Auditor's Contract — State Audit
Requirements, Appendix Il to the Independent AuditContract — Audit Extension Request, and
Appendix 1V to the Independent Auditor’'s Contradinstructions for Submission of the Audit Report.
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethe
the financial statements are free of material ratestent. An audit includes examining, on a testsha
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurdabdnfinancial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and mignif estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@nta We believe that our audit provides a reabtmma
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respechs t
respective financial position of governmental dtitg, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each majat, fand the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Marion County School District as of June 30120and the respective changes in financial positio
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and éspective budgetary comparison for the General Fund
and the Special Revenue Fund for the year thendeindeonformity with accounting principles geneyall
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued a report dated September 24,
2012, on our consideration of Marion County Schotrict’s internal control over financial reporgjn
and on our tests of its compliance with certainvigions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose ofepatt is to describe the scope of our testingntafral
control over financial reporting and compliance dhd results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over reporting or onmguiance. That report is an integral part of anitaud
performed in accordance witBovernment Auditing Standardsd should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in thetebhiStates of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparidomiation on Pages 3 through 10 and 17 and 18 be
presented to supplement the basic financial stattsm8uch information, although not a part of theib
financial statements, is required by the Governalehtcounting Standards Board, who considers lieto

an essential part of financial reporting for placithe basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. Weehapplied certain limited procedures to the resplir
supplementary information in accordance with andistandards generally accepted in the United State
of America, which consisted of inquiries of managetabout the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency withnagement’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obthauring our audit of the basic financial statetsen
We do not express an opinion or provide any asseran the information because the limited proceslure
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to exgsran opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forngipgpions on the financial statements that colledyiv
comprise the Marion County School District’s finestatements taken as a whole. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, ahd statement of receipts, disbursements and fund
balance — High School Activity Fund are presentadtiie purpose of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. TheoagEanying schedule of expenditures of federal asvard
is presented for purposes of additional analysisegaired by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Pf@fganizations and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statementfie Tombining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, statement of receipts, disbursemedtfuad balance — High School Activity Fund and the
schedule of federal awards are the responsibilitynanagement and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and otherords used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing gutaces applied in the audit of the financial staets

and certain additional procedures, including cofmgaand reconciling such information directly teeth
underlying accounting and other records used t@gvee the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional proeedo accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In ouniop, the information is fairly stated in all matd
respects in relation to the financial statemerkenas a whole.

Sincerely,

White and Compang, 9.5.C.

Certified Public Accountants



MARION COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT — LEBANON, KY
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Management's discussion and analysis of the MaZioanty School District (District) offers readers
of the District’s financial statements a narraixerview and analysis of the financial activitidste
District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 20Y¥2e encourage readers to review the information
presented here in conjunction with additional imation found within the body of these financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The beginning general fund balance for the Distrias $4,954,964. The ending general fund
balance was $6,283,790.

Total local taxes collected were $7,109,347 incigdgproperty, vehicles, and utility taxes.
Penalties and interest, omitted property taxesranehue in lieu taxes are also included in
this amount. $548,212 of the total local taxesectdd was the building fund (5 Cent Levy)
required for participation in the School Facilit@snstruction Commission (SFCC). SFCC
funds must be used for projects identified in th&tfizt's Facility Plan.

The District’s total revenues for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2012 were $32,908,234. The
total cost of all programs and services was $313®% excluding facilities acquisition and
construction costs which were funded with bond peafs.

The District received money from the Education J@isJobs) Program in the amount of
$748,129 during the fiscal year ended June 30, .20h2 Ed Jobs program was a Federal
program that provided $10 billion in assistanc&tates to save or create education jobs.
Jobs funded under this program included thosepttmaided educational and related services
for early childhood, elementary, and secondary atioic. The Ed Jobs money was
distributed on a reimbursement basis for allowaixlgenses incurred. The District incurred
expenses and was reimbursed for the year endedB0u2812, utilizing the Ed Jobs money.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, Bonk$2012 was issued with a par value of
$3,210,000 to refund Bond Series 2003, which waseid for the purpose of improvements to
Glasscock Elementary. This defeasance createsraysdw the District of $321,744 over the
next 12 years, and was possible due to the dedimerest rates.

FACILITIES AND CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS

State law requires districts to update a prioigydf construction and renovation needs,
called a Local Facilities Plan, every four yeaffie document guides the allocation of
School Facilities Construction Commission dolldise district updated its facilities plan
during fiscal year 2011. The plan indicated ov@8 $illion dollars in needs.

Bonds are issued as the district renovates fasltonsistent with a long-range facilities plan
that is established with community input and ingkeg with Kentucky Department of
Education (KDE) stringent compliance regulatiomsiring the year ended June 30, 2012,
$1,030,000 in School Building Revenue Bonds wele sofinance a renovation of Marion
County High School, and a partial roof replacensr@alvary Elementary.

3



e The board initiated a renovation project at Mai@ounty High School during 2012. This
renovation included the replacement of lightindunes in the classrooms, halls and cafeteria
for energy efficiency, the replacement of windoeusg the renovation of the restroom
facilities. Total costs were estimated at approxalya$993,388 (BG-1). The project was
substantially complete by August 2012, and withiddpet.

e A patrtial roof replacement for Calvary Elementargsmalso initiated during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. Total costs were estimatsopavximately $295,510 (BG-1). The
project was substantially completed by August 2@h2| within budget.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This overview is intended to serve as an introducto the District’s basic financial statements,
which are comprised of three components:

Government-wide financial statements.The government-wide financial statements are desigo
provide readers with a broad overview of the Disifinances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The statement of net assets presents informati@ll ofi the District’'s assets and liabilities, witie
difference between the two reported as net ass®ter time, increases or decreases in net assgts ma
serve as a useful indicator of whether the findrpmaition of the district is improving or

deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents informatioowahg how the District’'s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in neetssare reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless ofithiag of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for sanesithat will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements outlimefions of the District that are principally
supported by property taxes and intergovernmeatadnues (governmental activitie§he
governmental activities of the District includetmtion, support services, operation and
maintenance of plant, student transportation amdadjon of non-instructional services. Fixed asset
and related debt is also supported by taxes aatgmiernmental revenues.

The government-wide financial statements can bedan pages 11-12 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that sdu® maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for ispadifvities or objectives. This is a state mdada
uniform system and chart of accounts for all Kekyugublic school districts utilizing the MUNIS
administrative software. The District uses fundaamting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of ttunds of the District can be divided into three
categories: governmental, proprietary funds addciary funds. Fiduciary funds are trust funds
established by benefactors to aid in student egugatvelfare and teacher support. The only
proprietary fund is our food service operationl @dther activities of the district are includedtive
governmental funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statementsbeafound on pages 13 - 23 of this report.



Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information thag¢ésential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the goweent-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be foundage$24 - 39 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indichBbgovernment’s financial position. In theeas
of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by.91@illion as of June 30, 2012.

The largest portion of the District's net assetkeots its investment in capital assets (e.g., land
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehidlasjture and equipment and construction in
progress); less any related debt used to acquieethssets that are still outstanding. The Distric
uses these capital assets to provide services stuilents; consequently, these assets asevaidble
for future spending. Although the District’'s inte®nt in its capital assets is reported net otedla
debt, it should be noted that the resources nedegbay this debt must be provided from other
sources since the capital assets themselves caamusied to liquidate these liabilities.

The District’s financial position is the productgdveral financial transactions including the net
results of activities, the acquisition and payn@rdebt, the acquisition and disposal of capitabés
and the depreciation of capital assets.

Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business Activities Total
FYyil FY12 FYi1 FY12 FYi11 FY12

Current Assets $ 7,071,896 $ 8,660,162 443,898 $ 572,053 $ 7,515,794 9R32,215
Non-Current Assets 32,286,868 31,978,917 226,184 226,582 32,513,052 32,205,499

Total Assets 39,358,764 40,639,079 670,082 798,635 40,028,846 41,437,714
Current Liabilities 2,645,567 2,362855 - 2,736 2,645,567 2,368,29
Non-Current Liabilities 20,206,126 20,203 - - 20,206,126 20,221,403

Total Liabilities 22,851,693 22,583,961 - 2,736 22,851,693 22,586,697
Net Assets:
Invested in capital (net of debt) 10,981,868 10,643,917 226,184 226,582 11,208,052 10,870,499
Restricted 456,527 1,148,540 443,898 569,317 900,425 1,717,857
Unrestricted 5,068,676 6,262,661 5,068,676 6,262,661
Total Net Assets $ 16,507,071 $ 18,055,118 $70,082 $ 795,899 $17,177,153 83B017

Statement of Net Assets

Total net assets increased from $17,177,153 at3un2011 to $18,851,017 at June 30, 2012. This
is an increase of $1,673,864. Of that increas® 817 is from business type activities and
$1,548,047 is from government type activities. al'assets increased from $40,028,846 at June 30,
2011 to $41,437,714 at June 30, 2012. The inclieas¢al assets was primarily due to an increase i
cash from proceeds received from the bond issuain®&,030,000 for the renovation of the Marion
County High School and partial roof replacemer€alivary Elementary. Total liabilities decreased
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from $22,851,693 at June 30, 2011 to $22,586,69dra¢ 30, 2012. This decrease is primarily due
to a decrease in accounts payable at June 30, 2012.

Statement of Activities

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenue:
Property Taxes
Motor Vehicle Taxes
Utility Taxes
Other Taxes
State Aid - Formula Grants
Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous Revenues

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets

Loss Compensation

Total Revenues

Expenses
Instructional
Student Support Services
Staff Support Services
District Administration
School Administration
Business Support Services
Plant Operation & Maintenance
Student Transportation
Food Service
Community Service Operations
Facilities Acquisition & Construction

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets July 1,

Net Assets June 30,

Governmental Activities Business Activities _Total
_FY11 EY12 FY11 FY12 EY11 FY12
$ 120,200 $99,597 $ 682,168 $ 656,879 $02,368 756,476
4987, 4,185,364 1,722,621 1,394, 6,310,613 5,739,754
793,0 769,949 793,052 9,989
4,896,814 5,166,451 4,896,814 5,166,451
482,354 510,354 482,354 0,384
1,332,691 1,327,447 1,332,691 27,347
62,912 105,095 62,912 105,095
17,388,636 18,365,975 17,388,636 18,365,975
100,172 105,065 3,629 5,688 103,801 110,753
25,772 9,140 25,772 14
24,882 8,327 (1,240) 23,642 8,327
- 38,513 - 38,513
29,815,477 30,691,277 2,407,178 2,216,957 32,222,655 32,908,234
19,150,969 19,991,728 19,150,969 19,991,728
739,236 766,028 739,236 766,028
1,365,130 ,200,348 1,365,130 1,200,348
327,811 287,088 327,811 287,088
974,508 ,201,361 974,508 1,201,361
473,229 479,624 473,229 479,624
2,147,500 2,096,637 2,147,500 2,096,637
2,304,827  ,678,543 2,304,827 1,678,543
3,463 1Y 2,286,858 2,091,140 2,290 2,092,857
283,570 278,631 283,570 278,63
20,981 - 20,981 -
1,020,158 1,161,525 1,020,158 1,161,525
28,811,382 29,143,230 2,286,858 2,091,140 31,098,240 31,234,370
1,004,095 1(BY8 120,320 125,817 24,415 1,673,864
15,502,976 16,507,071 549,762 670,082 16,058,73 17,177,153
$ 16,507,071  $18,055,118 670,082 $ 795899 $17,177,153 18,851,017




On-Behalf Payments

On-behalf amounts are included in the figures abdvuse State of Kentucky makes on-behalf
payments for school districts in areas of healthlda insurance, retirement benefits, vocational
education, technology, and debt service. Theotig table presents a summary of the on-behalf
payments.

On-Behalf Distribution 2011-2012

Health Insurance and/or Flexible

Benefits $ 2,611,434
Life Insurance $ 41,813
Kentucky Teachers Retirement $ 1,646,786
Area Technology Center $ 81,675
Technology $ 66,198
Debt Service $ 731,186
Total On -Behalf Payments $ 5,179,092

Governmental Activities

Total expenses increased from $28,811,382 for ¢lae gnded June 30, 2011 to $29,143,230 for fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012. This is an increas@3ff,848 primarily due to an increase in

instructional expenses. Total revenue increased $29,815,477 at June 30, 2011 to $30,691,277 at
June 30, 2012. This is a total increase of $8TbBbnarily due to increased tax revenues and
increased revenue from the state. The changet imssets for June 30, 2011 was $1,004,095
compared to $1,548,047 at June 30, 2012. This isaease of $543,952 for the current fiscal year.

For the governmental program expenses, instrudtexpgenses comprise 69% of total expenses,
support services equate to 26%, and interest drat ekpenses make up the remaining 5% of the
total.

The cost of program services and the charges foices and grants offsetting those services are
shown on the Statement of Activities. The Statenoéwctivities identifies the net cost of services
supported by tax revenue and unrestricted intergorental revenues (state entitlements).

Governmental Activities Total Governmental Adies Net
Cost of Services Cost of Services
2012 2011 2012 2011
Instructional $ 19,991,728 $ 19,150,96 $ 16,297,097 $ 15,020,030
Support Services 7,711,346 338,704 7,379,147 8,026,910
Other 278,631 304,551 20,500 15,111
Interest Costs 1,161,525 Q,028 1,161,525 1,020,158

Total Expenses $ 29,143,230 $ 28,871,38$ 24,858,269 $ 24,082,209




BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The only business type activity at the Districkaed service. This program had total revenues of
$2,216,957 and expenses of $2,091,140 for fisaal $812. These revenues were made up of
$656,879 charges for services $1,554,390 fedethbtate operating grants and $5,688 earnings on
investments. These business-type activities recev&ipport from tax revenues, and, as such, the
District will continue to monitor these activitiasd make the necessary adjustments to the opegation
of these activities.

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The information relative to the School District'arils starts on page 13. These funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accounegwh fund’s revenues and expenses. The
combined revenues for all governmental funds fdr2@ere $ 30,682,950 and expenditures were
$32,924,219. The most significant changes in toaldnce were the General Fund with an increase
in fund balance of $1,328,826, primarily due tdrarease in tax revenues combined with an increase
in intergovernmental state revenues, and the Qartgin Fund with an increase of $935,059,

primarily due to the issuance of $1,030,000 of soied which only a portion of construction was
complete at June 30, 2012.

General Fund Revenue Chart 1

The majority of general revenue was derived fromtestunding (71%), with local taxes making up
27% of total general revenue.

Revenue by Source 1%

Federal

State
71%




General Fund Expenditures Chart 2

Approximately 65% of the general fund expenses wpent for instruction. A breakdown of all
general fund expenditures is found in the chamwel

Transportation

Expenditures 2, other

1%

Plant
S%

Business

2%

School Admin
District Admirﬁ

3%

Instruction
65%

Staff Support

4% Student Suppor

3%

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District’s budget is based on accounting fotaie transactions on the cash basis for receipts,
expenditures, and encumbrances and is prepareddawgto Kentucky law. The Kentucky
Department of Education requires a zero-based hwdteany remaining fund balance to be shown
as a contingency expense in the budgeting process.

The most significant budgeted fund is the Geneuald= The General Fund had budgeted revenues of
$18,580,025 with actual results being $24,496,99dgeted expenditures were $23,398,864
compared to actual expenditures of $23,158,163% mibst significant cause of the variance between
budget and actual was the state on-behalf paynretite amount of $4,246,585 which are not
budgeted.

FUTURE BUDGETARY IMPLICATIONS

In Kentucky the public school fiscal year is Julyune 30; other programs, i.e. some federal
programs operate on a different fiscal calendarabeireflected in the district overall budget. 1By
the budget must have a minimum 2% contingency. disteict adopted a budget with a contingency
slightly over 5%, which is recommended.

Significant Board action that impacts the finanredudes the Board's salary schedules which were
increased 1% for the 2012-2013 school year. Thé&eStid not mandate any raises for certified or

classified employees for the FY 2013. The Statzadsed the SEEK base from $3,903 to $3,833 for
the FY 2013. The decrease in SEEK base and aadecia pupil count results in reduced SEEK

funding of $110,242 for FY 2013.



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of the 2012 fiscal year, the District havested $32,205,499 in a broad range of capital
assets, including equipment, buses, buildings, land. This amount represents a net decrease of
$307,553. Depreciation expense for the year wg6$1776 and capital additions were $1,559,161.

The table below shows capital assets net of degdrecifor the governmental activities, businesstyp
activities and total primary government for fisgahrs ended June 30, 20dr&d 2011.

Governmental
Activities (Net of Depreciation)

Business - Type
Activities (Net depreciation)

Total Primary Govemtme
(Net of Depreciation)

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land $ 814,396 $ 814,396 $ - $ - $ 814,396 $ 814,396
Construction in Progress 248,957 - - - 248,957

Buildings and

Improvements 27,890,814 28,993,770 - - 27,890,814 28,993,770
Technology 1,577,093 1,224,307 2,942 3,923 1,580,035 1,228,230
Vehicles 1,063,604 951,841 - - 1,063,604 951,841
General Equipment 384,053 302,554 223,640 222,261 607,693 524,815
Total $ 31,978,917 $ 32,286,868 $ 226,582 $ 226,184 $ 32,205,499 $ 32,513,052

The table below shows the changes in capital afsefiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Governmental Business - Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Beginning Balance $ 32,286,868 $ 30,416,763 $ 226,184 $ 248,891 $ 32,513,052 $ 30,665,654
Additions 1,521,490 3,538,290 37,671 16,468 1,559,161 3,554,758
Retirements (938) (11,437) - (1,241) (938) @23)
Depreciation (1,828,503) (1,656,748) (37,273) (37,934) (1,865,776) (1,694,682)
Ending Balance $ 31,978,917  $ 32,286,868 226,582 $ 226,184 $ 32,205,499 $ 32,513,052

Long-Term Debt

At year-end the District had $21,335,000 in bonaistanding. Bond issues during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012 totaled $4,240,000. Bondetcpdebipal paid for the year ended June 30, 2012
was $4,210,000. A total of $1,350,000 is due withrie year.

Contacting the District's Financial Management

Questions regarding this report should be direttigéhuck Hamilton, Superintendent, or to Lisa
Caldwell, Finance Director, at (270) 692-3721 omhgil at 755 East Main Street, Lebanon, KY

40033.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Note C
Accounts Receivable:
Taxes - Current
Taxes - Delinquent
Accounts
Intergovernmental - State
Intergovernmental - Federal
Bond Issue Costs
Inventories for Consumption

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets - Note F
Land
Buildings & Improvements
Furniture & Equipment
Construction in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Sick Leave - Note A
Accrued Salaries & Benefits
Deferred Revenues
Bond Obligations - Note E
Accrued Interest Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bond Obligations - Note E
Accrued Sick Leave - Note A
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Net Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
School Based Decision Making
School Food Service
Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIMES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
7,851,635 543,559 8,395,194
137,364 137,364
8,334 8,334
8,394 8,394
19,439 19,439
206,992 206,992
428,004 16,333 444,337
12,161 12,161
8,660,162 572,053 9,232,215
814,396 814,396
43,995,603 43,995,603
8,023,035 753,391 8,776,426
248,957 248,957
(21,103,074) (328) (21,629,883)
31,978,917 226,582 32,205,499
40,639,079 798,635 41,437,714
192,767 2,736 195,503
90,066 90,066
256,898 256,898
287,843 287,843
1,350,000 1,350,000
184,984 184,984
2,362,558 2,736 2,365,294
19,985,000 19,985,000
236,403 236,403
20,221,403 20,221,403
22,583,961 2,736 22,586,697
18,817 226,582 10,870,499
1,044,179 1,044,179
27,746 27,746
569,317 569,317
76,615 76,615
6,262,661 6,262,661
18,055,118 795,899 18,851,017
40,639,079 798,635 #B7,714

See independent auditor's report and accompanyites o financial statements.
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FUNCTION/PROGRAMS

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Instructional
Support Services:
Student Support Services
Staff Support Services
District Administration
School Administration
Business Support Services
Plant Operation & Maintenance
Student Transportation
Food Service Operations
Community Service Operations
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Interest on Long-Term Debt
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Food Service
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL REVENUES:
Taxes
State Aid - Formula Grants
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

SPECIAL ITEMS:
Gain(Loss) Sale of Assets
Loss Compensation

TOTAL GENERAL & SPECIAL

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING
NET ASSETS - ENDING

MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NET(EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES

PROGRAM REVENUES

IN NET ASSETS

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR  GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL ~ BUSEES-TYPE
EXPENSES  SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
19,991,728 73,526 3,621,105 (16,297,09 (16,297,097)
766,028 91,686 (674,342) (674,342)
1,200,348 214,442 (985,906) (985,906)
287,088 (287,088) (287,088)
1,201,361 (1,201,361) (1,201,361)
479,624 (479,624) (479,624)
2,096,637 (2,096,637) (2,096,637)
1,678,543 26,071 (1,652,472) (1,652,472)
1,717 (1,717) (1,717)
278,631 258,131 (20,500) (20,500)
0 769,949 769,949 769,949
1,161,525 (1,161,525) (1,161,525)
29,143,230 99,597 4,16%4 769,949 (24,088,320) (24,088,320)
2,091,140 656,879 1,554,390 120,129 120,129
2,091,140 656,879 1,530 0 0 120,129 120,129
31,234,370 756,476 5,739,754 P49, (24,088,320) 120,129 (23,968,191)
7,109,347 7,109,347
18,365,975 18,365,975
105,065 5,688 110,753
9,140 9,140
8,327 8,327
38,513 38,513
25,636,367 5,688 25,642,055
1,548,047 125,817 1,673,864
16,507,071 670,082 17,177,153
18,055,118 795,899 18,851,017

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitas o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

DEBT OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND REVENUE FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 6,652,353 64,351 1,058,316 6,613 7,851,635
Accounts Receivable:
Taxes - Current 137,364 137,364
Taxes - Delinquent 8,334 8,334
Accounts 8,394 8,394
Intergovernmental - State 19,439 19,439
Intergovernmental - Federal 206,992 206,992
TOTAL ASSETS 6,806,445 290,782 1,058,316 76,615 81ER,
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 175,691 2,939 14,137 192,767
Accrued Salaries & Sick Leave 346,964 346,964
Deferred Revenues 287,843 287,843
Total Liabilities 522,655 290,782 14,137 0 827,574
Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 1,044,179 1,044,179
Debt Service 76,615 76,615
Committed for:
Accrued Sick Leave 236,403 236,403
Assigned for:
Site Based Carryforward 27,746 27,746
Unassigned Fund Balance 6,019,641 6,019,641
Total Fund Balance 6,283,790 0 1,044,179 76,615 0 7,884,5
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 6,806,445 290,782 56,316 76,615 8,232,158

See independent auditor's report and accompanyieg o financial statements.

13



MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAIFUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in stetement of net assets are different because:

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE 7,404,584

Capital assets used in governmental éietvare not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assegsviernmental funds.

Cost of Capital Assets 53,081,991
Accumulated Depreciation (21,103,074) 31,978,917
Bond Issuance Costs 428,004

Long-term liabilities (including bonds fzédofe) are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not riggbas liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year end consist

Bonds Payable (21,335,000)
Accrued Interest on Bonds (184,984)
Accrued Sick Leave (236,403) (21,756,387)

TOTAL NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 18,055,118

See independent auditor's report and accompanyieg o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES FRUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

DEBT OTHER TOTAL
SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL REVENUE FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
Taxes 6,561,135 548,212 7,109,347
Earnings on Investments 101,697 1,113 2,248 7 105,
Intergovernmental - State 17,379,968 1,137,961 1851, 769,949 20,019,064
Intergovernmental - Federal 143,006 2,939,482 a6 3,194,166
Other Sources 147,261 108,047 255,308
TOTAL REVENUES 24,333,067 4,186,603 2,248 842,871 1,838 30,682,950
EXPENDITURES:
Instructional 15,125,868 3,685,477 18,811,345
Support Services:
Student Support Services 674,342 91,686 766,028
Staff Support Services 981,377 214,442 1,195,819
District Administration 593,294 593,294
School Administration 1,210,076 1,210,076
Business Support Services 474,910 71,544 546,454
Plant Operation & Maintenance 2,032,449 2,032,449
Student Transportation 1,804,461 1,804,461
Central Office
Food Service Operation 1,717 1,717
Community Service Operations 22,217 256,414 278,631
Adult Education Operations
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 440,496 440,496
Debt Service:
Principal 4,210,000 4,210,000
Interest 1,033,449 1,033,449
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,918,994 4,249,736 440,496 5,393,9 0 32,924,219
EXCESS(DEFICIT) REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 1,414,073 (63,133) (438,248) (4,472,122) 318,161 (2,241,269
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 1,030,000 3,210,000 4,240,00(
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 9,266 9,266
Operating Transfers In - Note N 144,656 64,372 3a3, 1,267,967 1,820,302
Operating Transfers Out - Note N (239,169) (1,239) (2,835) (1,577,059) (1,820,302
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (85,247) 63,133 1,373(30 4,475,132 (1,577,059) 4,249,26
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,328,826 0 935,059 3,010 58898) 2,007,997
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 4,954,964 0 109,120 73,605 2583 5,396,587
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 6,283,790 0 1,044,179 76,615 0 04684

See independent auditor's report and accompangies o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of net assets are different because:
NET CHANGES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 2,007,997

Governmental funds report capital outlagexpenditures because they
use current financial resources. Howeivethe statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated tnedr estimated useful lives

and reported as depreciation expenses i$tihe amount by which
capital exceeds depreciation expensehfoyear.

Depreciation Expense (1,828,503)
Capital Outlays 1,521,490
(307,013)
Bond proceeds are reported as financingees in governmental funds and
thus contribute to the change in fund beda In the statement of net
assets, however, issuing debt increasestierm liabilities and does
not affect the statement of activitiesmigrly, repayment of principal
is an expenditure in the governmental fubdt reduces the liability in
the statement of net assets.
Principal Paid 4,210,000
Bond Proceeds (4,240,000) (30,000)
Bond Issuance Costs 106,354
Generally, expenditures recognized in g financial statement are
limited to only those that use currengfinial resources, but expenses
are recognized in the statement of a@witvhen they are incurred.
Amortization-Bond Issuance Costs (137,181)
Accrued Interest Payable 9,105
Accrued Sick Leave (100,276)
(228,352)
In the statement of activities the nengan the sale/disposal of assets
is reported in whereas in the governmefutads the proceeds from the sale
increases financial resources. Thus tlaage in net assets differs from
change in fund balances by the cost ottt sold.
Loss - Sale of Assets (939)
CHANGES - NET ASSETS GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1,548,047

See independent auditor's report and accompangies o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

REVENUES:
Taxes
Other Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources
Other Sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Instructional
Student Support Services
Staff Support Services
District Administration
School Administration
Business Support Services
Plant Operation & Maintenance
Student Transportation
Central Office
Community Service Operations
Facility Acquisition & Construction
Other

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

On-behalf payments totaling $ 4,246,585 are ndgkted by the Marion County School District.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BUEG ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
5,753,230 5,753,230 6,561,135 807,905
33,044 43,044 156,527 113,483
12,595,704 12,678,751 17,379,968 2701
30,000 30,000 143,006 113,006
75,000 75,000 246,353 171,353
18,486,978 18,580,025 24,486,089 5,066,9
13,496,853 13,498,716 15,125,868 @, 52)
689,078 689,078 674,342 7364,
741,306 824,353 981,377 iizzol
699,551 699,551 593,294 5,
989,788 989,788 1,210,076 (288)
369,313 369,313 474,910 05,527)
2,389,218 2,342,918 ,032449 310,469
1,861,369 1,861,369 1,804,46 56,908
0 0 0 0
19,700 29,700 22,217 483,
65,000 65,000 0 65,000
1,984,641 2,029,078 239,169 1,789,909
23,305,817 23,398,864 23,158,163 200
(4,818,839) (4,818,839) 23,826 6,147,665
4,818,839 4,818,839 4,954496 0
0 0 6,283,790 6,147,665

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitgs o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SPECIAL REVENUBFUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

VARIANCE WITH
FINAL BUDGET
ORIGINAL INFAL POSITIVE
BUDGET BGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENUES:
Taxes
Other Local Sources 16,215 16,215 108,047 91,832
State Sources 1,094,411 1,086,917 1,137,961 51,044
Federal Sources 2,156,328 2,124,300 2,939,482 815,18
Other Sources 81,500 81,500 65,485 (16,015)
TOTAL REVENUES 3,348,454 3,308,932 4,250,975 942,043
EXPENDITURES:
Instructional 2,835,803 2,802,436 3,685,477 (88B)04
Student Support Services 84,600 87,824 91,686 (3,862
Staff Support Services 163,578 162,719 214,442 =,7
District Administration 0 0 0 0
School Administration 0 0 0 0
Business Support Services 0 0 0 0
Plant Operation & Maintenance 0 0 0 0
Student Transportation 0 0 0 0
Food Service Operations 0 0 1,717 1,717)
Central Office 0 0 0 0
Community Service Operations 264,473 255,953 256,41 (461)
Facility Acquisition & Construction 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 1,239 (1,239)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,348,454 3,308,932 4,250,975 (943)0
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 0 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 0 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 0 0 0 0

See accompanying auditor's report and accompamyites to financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

OTHER
FOOD ENTERPRISE
SERVICE FUNDS TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents 543,559 543,559
Investments 0
Accounts Receivable 16,333 16,333
Inventories for Consumption 12,161 12,161
Total Current Assets 572,053 0 572,053
Noncurrent Assets:
Furniture & Equipment 753,391 753,391
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (526,809) (8@8)
Total Noncurrent Assets 226,582 0 226,582
TOTAL ASSETS 798,635 0 798,635
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Account Payable 2,736 2,736
Accrued Sick Leave 0
Total Current Liabilities 2,736 0 2,736
Net Assets:
Invested in Assets, Net of Debt 226,582 226,582
Restricted 569,317 569,317
Total Net Assets 795,899 0 795,899
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 798,635 0 798,635

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitas o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NBBSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES:
Lunchroom Sales
Other Operating Revenues
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits
Contract Services
Materials & Supplies
Depreciation - Note F
Other Operating Expenses
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES):
Federal Grants
State Grants
Donated Commodities
Interest Income
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets
Miscellaneous Income
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

OTHER
FOOD ENTERPRISE
SERVICE FUNDS TOTAL
656,879 656,879
0
656,879 0 656,879
1,054,333 1,054,333
40,122 40,122
949,776 949,776
37,273 37,273
9,636 9,636
2,091,140 0 2,091,140
(1,434,261) 0 (1,434,261)
1,219,668 1,219,668
220,860 220,860
113,862 113,862
5,688 5,688
0 0
0 0
1,560,078 1,560,078
125,817 5,317
0 0 0
125,817 0 125,817
670,082 670,082
795,899 0 795,899

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitas o financial statements.

20



MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from:
Lunchroom Sales
Cash Paid to/for:
Employees
Supplies
Other Activities

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal Grants
State Grants

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital and Related Fimanactivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Purchases of Capital Assets
Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Interest Income

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances, Beginning of Year

Balances, End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to NethQésed)
by Operating Activities
Depreciation
State On-Behalf Payments
Donated Commodities
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Inventory
Accounts Payable

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Schedule of Non-Cash Transactions:
Donated Commodities
State On-Behalf Payments

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitgs o financial statements.
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656,879
(853,012)
(832,349)

(47,022)

(1,075,504)

1,241,772
19,539

1,261,311

(37,671)

5,688
153,824
389,735

543,559

(1,434,261)

37,273
201,321
113,862

3,565
2,736

(1,075,504)

113,862
201,321



MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Investment Income Receivable
Loans Receivable
Investments - Note D

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable

Due to Student Groups
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

PRIVATE
PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS

AGENCY FUND

5,933 230,482
139,577
145,510 230,482
5,836
224,646
0 230,482
145,510 0

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitgs o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS:
Net Interest and Investment Gains(Losses)
Scholarship Funds Contributed
DEDUCTIONS:
Broker Fees
Benefits Paid
Changes in Net Assets

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitas o financial statements.
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PRIVATE
PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS

5,363

1,467
6,000

(2,104)

147,614

145,510




MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Marion County Board of Education (“Board”), i@efmember group, is the level of government
which has oversight responsibilities over all atitg related to public elementary and secondangpaic
education within the jurisdiction of Marion CourBypard of Education (“District”). The District reilves
funding from local, state, and federal governmemtireses and must comply with the commitment
requirements of these funding source entities. él@w, the District is not included in any other
governmental “reporting entity” as defined in Sext2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards. Board memlrerglacted by the public and have decision-making
authority, the power to designate management,afeonsibility to develop policies which may infleen
operations, and primary accountability for fiscalttars.

The District, for financial purposes, includesdlithe funds and account groups relevant to theabio®

of the Marion County Board of Education. The fio@h statements presented herein do not include
funds of groups and organizations, which althouggoeiated with the school system, have not origthat
within the Board itself such as Band Boosters, Rafeacher Associations, etc.

The financial statements of the District includegé of separately administered organizations treat a
controlled by or dependent on the Board. Controtl@pendence is determined on the basis of budget
adoption, funding, and appointment of the respeageverning board.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financialestants of the following organizations are includethe
accompanying financial statements:

Marion County Board of Education Finance CorporatioOn May 14, 1991, the Board of Education
resolved to authorize the establishment of the da@ounty School District Finance Corporation (a-ho
profit, non-stock, public and charitable corporatimrganized under the School Bond Act and KRS 273
and KRS Section 58.180) (the “Corporation”) as gergy for the District for financing the costs of
school building facilities. The members of the Bbalso comprise the Corporation’s Board of Diresto

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The statermbmet assets and the statement of activities
display information about the District as a wholehese statements include the financial activibiethe
primary government, except for fiduciary funds. T™tatements distinguish between those activities of
the District that are governmental and those tretansidered business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared usengdonomic resources measurement focus. This is
the same approach used in the preparation of tyiptary fund financial statements but differsnfirthe
manner in which governmental fund financial statetmeare prepared. Governmental fund financial
statements therefore include reconciliation witliefoexplanations to better identify the relatioqshi
between the government-wide statements and trenstats for governmental funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The government-wide statement of activities presantomparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-typdtistiof the District and for each function or gram

of the District's governmental activities. Direstpenses are those that are specifically associatkdh
service, program or department and are theref@arlgl identifiable to a particular function. Pragr
revenues include charges paid by the recipiert@fybods or services offered by the program anatgra
and contributions that are restricted to meetirg dperational or capital requirements of a paricul
program. Revenues that are not classified as pnogevenues are presented as general revenues of th
District, with certain limited exceptions. The cpanison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each business segmegovernmental function is self-financing or wsa
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements — Fund financial statésmeport detailed information about the Distrighe
focus of governmental and enterprise fund finanstatements is on major funds rather than reporting
funds by type. Each major fund is presented ipgaate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column. Fiduciary fundsreperted by fund type.

The accounting and reporting treatment applied tona is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental fund types are accounted for usidgva df current financial resources measurementgocu
The financial statements for governmental funds arealance sheet, which generally includes only
current assets and current liabilities, and a state of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances, which reports on the changes in net &sséts. Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are
reported using the economic resources measureroens.f The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the District finances and ted¢be cash flow needs of its proprietary actigitie

The District has the following funds:

I. Governmental Fund Types

A. The General Fund is the main operating fundhaf Board. It accounts for financial
resources used for general types of operationds i§ha budgeted fund, and any fund
balances are considered as resources availablaséor This is a major fund of the
District.

B. The Special Revenue (Grant) Funds account for padx@f specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trust or major capital ptsjethat are legally restricted to
disbursements for specified purposes. It inclufisteral financial programs where
unused balances are returned to the grantor @ldke of the specified project periods as
well as the state grant programs. Project accogiisiemployed to maintain integrity for
the various sources of funds. The separate psofictederally funded grant programs
are identified on Pages 44 and 45 in the Scheduxmenditures of Federal Awards and
related notes. This is a major fund of the Distric

C. Capital Project Funds are used to account for Giziresources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital famds and equipment (other than those
financed by Proprietary Fund).

1. The Support Education Excellence in Kentucky (SEEKpital Outlay Fund

receives those funds designated by the state agaC&utlay funds and is
restricted for use in financing projects identifiadhe District’s facility plan.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. The Facility Support Program of Kentucky (FSPK)@gaus for funds generated
by the building tax levy required to participate the School Facilities
Construction Commission’s construction funding astdte matching funds,
where applicable. Funds may be used for projetgstified in the District's
facility plan.

3. The Construction Fund accounts for proceeds frolessaf bonds and other
revenues to be used for authorized construction.

D. Debt Service Funds are used to account for thenadetion of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal anerigst and related cost; and for the
payment of interest on generally obligation notagable, as required by Kentucky law.

Il. Proprietary Fund Types (Enterprise Fund)

The Food Service Fund is used to account for scfomul service activities, including the
National School Lunch Program, which is conducted cooperation with the U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA). Amounts have eecorded for in-kind contribution of
commodities from the USDA. The Food Service fund imajor fund.

The District applies all GASB pronouncements toppietary funds as well as the Financial
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued bafore November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradictSBApronouncements.

lll. Fiduciary Fund Type (Agency and Private PurposesfTirunds)

A. The Agency Fund accounts for activities of studgnoiups and other types of activities
requiring clearing accounts. The funds are acaalifdr in accordance with the Uniform
Program of Accounting for School Activity Funds.

B. The Private Purpose Trust funds are used to repast arrangements under which
principal and income benefit individuals, privatganization, or other governments.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactioagenorded in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements. Government-wide findnsiatements are prepared using the accrual bésis o
accounting. Governmental funds use the modifienluad basis of accounting. Proprietary and fidycia
funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues — Exchange and Nonexchange TransactiBesenues resulting from exchange transactions,
in which each party receives essentially equalejailsirecorded on the accrual basis when the egehan
takes place. On a modified accrual basis, reveatgesecorded in the fiscal year in which the resesi
are measurable and available. Available meanstligatesources will be collected within the current
fiscal year or are expected to be collected soaugm thereafter to be used to pay liabilities af th
current fiscal year. For the District, availableans expected to be received within 60 days ofiskal
year-end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Districeiess value without directly giving equal value in
return, include property taxes, grants, entitlermeartd donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal yearvitnich the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entittements and donations is recognized in thmafigear in which all eligibility requirements halieen
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timimgquirements, which specify the year when theueso

are required to be used or the fiscal year whenauBist permitted, matching requirements, in whibhe
District must provide local resources to be usedafepecified purpose, and expenditure requirements
which the resources are provided to the Districeaeimbursement basis. On a modified accruakbasi
revenues from nonexchange transactions must alagakble before it can be recognized.

Deferred Revenue — Deferred revenue arises whegtsaase recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied.

Grants and entitlements received before the elityihiequirements are met are recorded as deferred
revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures — On the accrual basis ouatiog, expenses are recognized at the time treey a

incurred. The fair value of donated commoditieedugluring the year is reported in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assetsexpemse with a like amount reported as donated
commodities revenue. Unused donated commoditeeseported as deferred revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund acamyrid on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expendianegenerally recognized in the accounting penod i
which the related fund liability is incurred, if @surable. Allocations of costs, such as depreciatire

not recognized in governmental funds.

Property Taxes

Property Tax Revenues — Property taxes are lexdeld 8eptember on the assessed value listed as of th
prior January 1, for all real and personal propeantyhe county. The billings are considered duerup
receipt by the taxpayer; however, the actual dateased on a period ending 30 days after the thx bi
mailing. Property taxes collected are recordeteasnues in the fiscal year for which they weraddy

All taxes collected are initially deposited inteetiGeneral fund and then transferred to the apmiEpri
fund.

The property tax rates assessed for the year ehdexl30, 2012, to finance the General Fund opesatio
were $0.521 per $100 valuation for real propert9,581 per $100 valuation for business personal
property, and $0.526 per $100 valuation for modigles.

The District levies a utility gross receipts licertsix in the amount of 3% of the gross receiptsvedr
from the furnishings, within the county, of teleplm and telegraphic communications services,
cablevision services, electric power, water, artdnad, artificial, and mixed gases.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not spégifielated to activities reported in the protaig
funds. These assets generally result from expamditin the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities columnhaf gjovernment-wide statement of net assets butaire
reported in the fund financial statements. CapitHets utilized by the proprietary funds are reglr
both in the business-type activities column of gowernment-wide statement of net assets and in the
respective funds.

27



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Ingrents are depreciated over the remaining useéad |
of the related capital assets. Depreciation isprged using the straight-line method over the foihg
useful lives for both general capital assets angntary fund assets:

Governmental Activities

Description Estimated Lives
Buildings and improvements 25-50 years
Land improvements 20 years
Technology equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Audio-visual equipment 15 years
Food service equipment 10-12 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Rolling stock 15 years
Other 10 years

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and pegatesulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” e§é amounts are eliminated in the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the statemehtset assets, except for the net residual amalurts
between governmental and business-type activiiibgsh are presented as internal balances.

Accumulated Unpaid Sick Leave Benefits

Upon retirement from the school system, an emplaviteeceived from the District an amount equal to
30% of the value of accumulated sick leave.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability gidime termination payment method. An accrual for
earned sick leave is made to the extent that firidbable that the benefits will result in termioati
payments. The liability is based on the Schooltrigiss past experience of making termination
payments.

The entire compensated absence liability is redastethe government-wide financial statements.

For governmental fund financial statements theenirportion of unpaid accrued sick leave is thewamo
expected to be paid using expendable availableuress. These amounts are recorded in the amount
“accumulated sick leave payable” in the generalifuithe noncurrent portion of the liability is rejem

as a reserve of fund balance.

Budgetary Process

Budgetary Basis of Accounting: The District’'s betwyy process accounts for certain transactiona on
basis other than Generally Accepted Accountingdijslas (GAAP). The major differences between the
budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

Revenues are recorded when received in cash (larglyets opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (badgets opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).
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Once the budget is approved, it can be amendedendments are presented to the Board at their regula
meetings. Such amendments are made before theafaateflected in the official minutes of the Bahar
and are not made after fiscal year-end as dictatddw.

Each budget is prepared and controlled by the Hhudgerdinator at the revenue and expenditure
function/object level. All budget appropriatiorgpe at year-end.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers demand deposits, money médtkels, and other investments with an original
maturity of 90 days or less, to be cash equivalents

Inventories
On government-wide financial statements, invengosiee stated at cost and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements inventories are statezbst. The cost of inventory items is recordsdn
expenditure in the governmental fund types wheghmased.

The food service fund uses the specific identifaratmethod.
Investments

The private purpose trust funds record investmantbeir quoted market prices. All realized gaansi
losses and changes in fair value are recordeckiSthitement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-ternligdtions are reported in the government-wide fiiah
statements, and all payables, accrued liabilies, long-term obligations payable from proprietanyds
are reported on the proprietary fund financialestants.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities th#ithe paid from governmental funds are reportedhan
governmental fund financial statements regardldssvimether they will be liquidated with current
resources. However, claims and judgments, the urogrt portion of capital leases, accumulated sick
leave, contractually required pension contributiand special termination benefits that will be pagn
governmental funds are reported as a liabilityhiea fund financial statements only to the extent thay

will be paid with current, expendable, availableaficial resources. In general, payments maderwithi
sixty days after year-end are considered to haem lmeade with current available financial resources.
Bonds and other long-term obligations that willgzed from governmental funds are not recognized as
liability in the fund financial statements untilelu

Fund Balance

In accordance with Government Accounting StandaBdsmrd 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the Distri@adifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable — includes fund balance amountsctratot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractuadtcaints.
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Restricted — includes fund balance amounts thetanstrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers, such as credit@ramounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — includes fund balance amounts thatcanstrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the government through forraation of the highest level of decision
making authority and does not lapse at year-end.

Assigned — includes fund balance amounts thainéeaded to be used for specific purposes that
are neither considered restricted or committed. dFlBalance may be assigned by the
Superintendent.
Unassigned — includes positive fund balance witthia General Fund which has not been
classified within the above mentioned categoriesl aregative fund balances in other
governmental funds.

The District committed the following fund balang@é by taking the following action:

Fund Balance Type Amount Action

General Fund $236,403 Long-Term Sick Leave Comemtm
The District usesestricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricteduamdstricted fund
balance is available unless there are legal doctafoemtracts that prohibit doing this, such as gran
agreements requiring dollar for dollar spendingdifidnally, the District would first useommitted, then
assigned, and lastlyunassigned amounts for unrestricted fund balance when expereditare made.
The District does not have a formal minimum funthbae policy.

Major Special Revenue Fund Revenue Source

Special Revenue State, Local and Federal Grants
Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assdigbilities. Net assets invested in capitakés net

of related debt consists of capital assets, netceimulated depreciation, reduced by the outstgndin
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisittmmstruction, or improvement of those assetst Ne
assets are reported as restricted when there rai@atlons imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School Distoicthrough external restrictions imposed by cdit
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governisien

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that aregapesedirectly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. For the School District, thoseenues are primarily charges for meals providethe
various schools.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund finaaicstatements arise from outside contributionéixad
assets, or from grants or outside contributionsregources restricted to capital acquisition and
construction.
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Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reportedregsnues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. sréddwash or goods from one fund to another witlaout
requirement for repayment are reported as intertuaasfers. Interfund transfers are reported herot
financing sources/uses in governmental funds atet abnoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary
funds. Repayments from funds responsible for paer expenditures/expenses to the funds thaaliyiti
paid for them are not presented on the financaéstents.

NOTE B — ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires the District'snaigement to make estimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities,dflralances, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the general purposerftial statements, and the reported amounts of vmgen
and expenditures during the reporting period. Aktasults could differ from those estimates.

NOTE C — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial Craditthe risk that in the event of a bank failureg th
District's deposits may not be returned to it. Thistrict's policy is to have all deposits secured b
pledged securities.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the Distridti$al cash and cash equivalents were $8,631,609. O
the total cash balance, $339,089 was covered bgr&e@depository Insurance and $8,292,520 was
covered by collateral agreements and collaterad bgl the pledging banks’ trust departments in the
District's name.

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2012, cathsitthe following:

Bank Balance Book Balance

Citizens National Bank 10,533,726 8,395,194
Farmers Bank (Agency Funds) 57,356 57,176
Citizens National Bank (Agency) 154,886 147,506
U.S. Bank (Agency) 25,800 25,800
Paine Webber 5,933 5,933
10,777,701 8,631,609
Breakdown per financial statements:
Governmental Funds 7,851,635
Proprietary Funds 543,559
Private Purpose Trust Funds 5,933
Agency Funds 230,482
8,631,609

NOTE D — INVESTMENTS

Private purpose trust funds reflected in the statdrof fiduciary net assets consist of trust furmhies
restricted by the donors for awarding college satsblips. These restricted funds are managed by USB
Financial Services, Inc. These funds are held enDistrict's name and invested in money market and
mutual fund investments.
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The following is a comparison of the cost and Yailue of investments held in trust at June 30, 2012

Cost Fair Value
Private Purpose Trust Funds
Money Market 5,933 5,933
Mutual Funds 108,650 139,577
114,583 145,510

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that the isswf an investment will not fulfill its obligatioto the
holder of the investment. More specifically, cusabdredit risk is the risk that, in the event bétfailure
of the counter party, the District will not be altte recover the value of its investments or cotklte
securities that are held in the possession of &ideuparty.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the tigkt the changes in market interest rates willeagskly
affect the fair market value of an investment. istrict does not have a formal policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing fiesxe to fair value losses arising from interasts.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The District’s intreent policy places no limit on the amount the st
may invest in any one issuer.

Risks and Uncertainties — The District invests amiaus investment securities. Investment securéres
exposed to various risks, such as interest ragelitcand market risks. Due to the level of riskasated
with certain investment securities, it is at leasasonably possible that changes in the values of
investment securities will occur in the near temd #éat such change could materially affect thevant
balances and the amounts reports in the staterhédtoiary net assets.

NOTE E — BONDED DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The amount shown in the accompanying financiakstants as bond obligations represents the District’
future obligations to make bond payments relatimghte bonds issued by the Marion County School
District Finance Corporation aggregating $21,336,00

The original amount of each issue and interestraite summarized below:

2002 3,490,000 1.50% - 3.850%
2003 Unrefunded 210,000 3.05% - 3.150%
2005 Series A 5,920,000 4.17% - 4.180%
2005 Series B 2,455,000 3.96% - 3.970%
2006 675,000 3.85% - 3.860%
2009 3,045,000 3.00% - 3.375%
2009 Series B 5,995,000 1.50% - 6.00%
2012 3,210,000 1.25% - 2.125%
2012 Series B 4,750,000 1.00% - 2.375%

The District, through the General Fund (includirdity taxes and the SEEK Capital Outlay Fund) is
obligated to make payments in amounts sufficiersattisfy debt service requirements on bonds isbyed
the Marion County School District Finance Corparatio construct school facilities. The Districstan
option to purchase the property under lease atiargyby retiring the bonds then outstanding.
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In 1995 the Board entered into “participation agmeats” with the Kentucky School Facility
Construction Commission. The Commission was ctehyethe Kentucky Legislature for the purpose of
assisting local schools districts in meeting schamoistruction needs. The table sets forth the amimu

be paid by the Board and the Commission for eaalh yatil maturity of all bonds issued. The Kentyck
School Construction Commission’s participation imited to the biennial budget period of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky with the right reservedioy Kentucky School Construction Commission to
terminate the commitment to pay the agreed padiiwp every two years. The obligation of the
Kentucky School Construction Commission to makeatyeeed payments automatically renews each two
years for a period of two years unless the Kentus&lyool Construction Commission gives notice if its
intention not to participate not less than sixtysprior to the end of its biennium.

The bonds may be called prior to maturity and rgutéon premiums are specified in each issue.
Assuming no bonds are called prior to scheduledintgt the maturity, the minimum obligations of the
District, including amounts to be paid by the Cossion at June 30, 2012, for debt service (prin@pal
interest) are as follows:

District's
Year Principal Interest Participation Portion

2012-13 1,350,000 719,338 800,537 1,268,801
2013-14 1,405,000 675,625 810,285 1,270,340
2014-15 1,120,000 630,161 483,942 1,266,219
2015-16 1,160,000 596,550 483,173 1,273,377
2016-17 1,095,000 560,035 482,408 1,172,629
2017-18 1,135,000 525,586 481,641 1,178,945
2018-19 1,140,000 479,071 443,574 1,175,497
2019-20 1,155,000 437,326 414,137 1,178,189
2020-21 1,110,000 409,183 345,085 1,174,098
2021-22 1,145,000 380,887 344,233 1,181,654
2022-23 1,170,000 351,313 343,383 1,177,930
2023-24 1,190,000 302,813 287,927 1,204,887
2024-25 1,245,000 252,737 291,427 1,206,310
2025-26 1,265,000 200,499 264,983 1,200,516
2026-27 1,075,000 145,205 186,941 1,033,265
2027-28 1,110,000 104,503 185,291 1,029,212
2028-29 1,160,000 61,303 188,504 1,032,800
2029-30 1,175,000 16,210 154,130 1,037,080
2030-31 65,000 4,225 69,225 0
2031-32 65,000 2,113 67,113 0

21,335,000 6,854,685 7,127,936 21,061,749
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Long-term liability activity for the year ended &80, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bond Payable 21,305,000 4,240,000 4Qa0, 21,335,000 1,350,000
Accrued Sick Leave 265,819 111,089 50,439 326,469 90,066

Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities 21,570,819 4,351,089 D289 21,661,469 1,440,066
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NOTE F - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year endeneJ80, 2012, was as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land

Construction In Progress
Depreciable Assets:

Buildings & Building Improvements

Technology Equipment

Vehicles

General Equipment
TOTAL AT HISTORICAL COST

LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Buildings & Building Improvements
Technology Equipment
Vehicles
General Equipment
Construction In Progress

TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL NET

PROPRIETARY ACTIVITIES:
Depreciable Assets:

Technology Equipment
General Equipment
TOTALS AT HISTORICAL COST
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FOR:
Technology Equipment
General Equipment
TOTAL ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITIES CAPITAL NET

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE CHARGED TO GOVERNMENTAL FUNGCDNS AS FOLLOWS:

Instructional
Staff Support Services
District Administration
School Administration
Business Support Services
Plant Operation & Maintenance
Student Transportation

TOTAL

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS BALANCE

814,396 814,396

248,957 248,957

43,879,336 116,267 43,995,603

3,494,864 750,912 476,882 3,768,894

3,076,200 278,468 6,200 3,348,468

825,937 126,886 47,150 905,673

52,090,73: 1,521,490 530,23: 53,081,991

14,885,566 1,219,223 16,104,789

2,270,557 397,188 475,944 2,191,801

2,124,359 166,705 6,200 2,284,864

523,383 45,387 47,150 521,620

19,803,865 1,828,503 529,294 21,103,074

32,286,868 _ (307,013) 938 31,978,917

7,960 2,292 5,668

712,852 37,671 2,800 747,723

720,812 37,671 5,092 753,391

4,037 981 2,292 2,726

490,591 36,292 2,800 524,083

494,628 37,273 5,092 526,809

226,184 398 0 226,582

1,355,592

4,529

154,060

20,269

4,714

154,451

134,888

1,828,503
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NOTE G — RETIREMENT PLANS

Certified employees are covered under the Teaclgiement System of Kentucky (“*KTRS”), a cost

sharing, multiple employer defined benefit penspan. KTRS administers retirement and disability

annuities, and death and survivor benefits to eygale and beneficiaries of employees of the public
school systems and public educational agencie®imucky.

KTRS was created by the 1938 General Assembly sugdverned by Chapter 161 Section 220 through
161 Section 990 of the Kentucky Revised StatutdRK KTRS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and requsupplementary information for the defined benef
pension plan. That report can be obtained by wgitim Kentucky Teachers’ Retirement System, 479
Versailles Road, Frankfort, KY 40601.

Contribution rates are established by KRS. Membeesl before July 1, 2008, are required to contebu
10.355% of their salaries and for members hiregraftily 1, 2008, to contribute 10.855% to KTRS. The
Commonwealth of Kentucky is required to contribLi82605% and 14.105% of salaries respectively. The
federal program for any salaries paid by that progpays the matching contributions. KTRS requires
that members of KTRS occupy a position requirinezia four (4) year college degree or certifiaatiy

KY Department of Education (KDE)

Substantially all other employees (classified pensd) are covered under the County Employee’s
Retirement System (“CERS”), a cost sharing, mudtipmployer, public employers retirement system.
Funding for the Plan is provided through payrolithlibldings of 5% for employees hired before
September 15, 2008, and 6% for employees hired Sfptember 15, 2008, and a Board contribution of
18.96% of the employee’s total compensation sultgecbntribution.

The Board’s total payroll for the year was $17,563, The payroll for employees covered under KTRS
was $13,736,014 and for CERS was $3,627,493.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the Commonweaitttibuted $1,646,786 KTRS for the benefit of
our participating employees. The School Districtntributions to KTRS for the year ending June 30,
2012, were $234,200, which represents those emgdoy@vered by federal programs.

The contribution requirements for CERS for the yeaded June 30, 2012, were $867,164, which
consisted of $682,179 from the Board and $184,8@% the employees.

Benefits under both plans will vary based on fioempensation, years of service, and other facters a
fully described in the Plan documents.

The “pension benefit obligation” is a standardizisclosure measure of the present value of pension
benefits, adjusted for the effects of projectedarsaincreased and step-rate benefits, estimatduaeto
payable in the future as a result of employee serto date. The measure, which is the actuaredegot
value of credited projected benefits, is intendedelp users assess the pensions’ funding statws on
going-concern basis, assess progress made in alatumgsufficient assets to pay benefits when dinel,
make comparisons among the plans and employers.
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KTRS and CERS do not make separate measuremerdssefs and pension benefit obligation for
individual employers. The following tables preseattain information regarding the plans’ statusaas
whole, derived from actuarial valuations perfornascf the dates indicated:

KTRS CERS
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2011
Assets available for benefits, at fair value 14,988,000 5,629,611,183
Pension benefit obligation (25,968,692,000) (8,988,025)
(Underfunded)/overfunded pension benefit obligatiofl1,060,554,000) (3,288,473,842)

Ten-year historical trend information showing KTRSind CERS'’s progress in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due is presented in Xhee 30, 2011, comprehensive annual financial
reports.

As the District is only one of several employergipgating in the Plan, it is not practicable tetermine
the District's portion of the unfunded past servimst or the vested benefits of the District’s joortof
the Plan assets.

The District also offers employees the option tdipgate in a defined contribution plan under 8stt
403(B), 401(K), and 457 of the Internal Revenue €odll regular full-time and part-time employees a
eligible to participate and may contribute to theximum amount allowable by law. The District does
not contribute to these plans.

NOTE H — CONTINGENCIES

The District receives funding from federal, sta@nd local government agencies and private
contributions. These funds are to be used foigdaséd purposes only. For government agency griénts
based upon the grantor’s review, the funds areidered not to have been used for the intended gerpo
the grantors may request a refund of monies addanoe refuse to reimburse the District for its
disbursements. The amount of such future refumdbs wreimbursed disbursements, if any, is not
expected, to be significant. Continuation of thstiict's grant programs is predicated upon thengnas’
satisfaction that the funds provided are being spenntended and the grantors’ intent to contitiegr
programs.

NOTE | — INSURANCE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES
The District is exposed to various forms of lossagbets associated with the risks of fire, personal
liability, theft, vehicular accidents, errors anahissions, fiduciary responsibility, etc. Each loése risk

areas is covered through the purchase of commergalrance. The District has purchased certain
policies, which are retrospectively related whicbtlide Workers’ Compensation insurance.
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NOTE J — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of lodgtedl to injuries to employees. To obtain insueaot
workers’ compensation, errors and omissions, ameigé liability coverage, the District participaties
the Kentucky School Boards Insurance Trust Liapilitsurance fund. The public entity risk pools
operate as common risk management and insuranggapms for all school district and other tax
supported educational agencies of Kentucky who raembers of the Kentucky School Boards
Association. The District pays an annual premiwmeach fund for coverage. Contributions to the
Workers’ Compensation fund are based on premiussrastablished by such fund in conjunction with
the excess insurance carrier, subject to claimermexme modifications and a group discount amount.
Dividends may be declared but are not payable tméhty-four (24) months after the expiration of th
self-insurance term. The Liability Insurance fyrad/s insurance premiums of the participating member
established by the insurance carrier. The Trustteaninate coverage if it is unable to obtain atalele
excess general liability coverage and for any nedsogiving ninety (90) days’ notice. In the evéme
Trust terminated coverage, any amount remaininghm Fund (after payment of operational and
administrative costs for which coverage was pravjdeould be returned to the members on a pro rata
basis.

The District purchases unemployment insurance tiitrahhe Kentucky School Boards Insurance Trust
Unemployment Compensation Fund; however, risk lshdeen transferred to such fund. In addition, the
District continues to carry commercial insurancedt other risks of loss. Settled claims resgtfrom
these risks have not exceeded commercial insui@naage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE K — DEFICIT OPERATING BALANCES
There are no funds of the District that currentivd a deficit fund balance. In addition the foliogv
funds have operations that resulted in a curreat geficit of expenditures over revenues resulimg
corresponding reduction of fund balance.

Construction Fund 438,248

Debt Service 4,472,122
NOTE L — COBRA
Under COBRA, employers are mandated to notify teated employees of available continuing
insurance coverage. Failure to comply with thigurement may put the School District at risk for a
substantial loss (contingency).

NOTE M — COMMITMENTS UNDER NONCAPITALIZED LEASES

Commitments under operating lease agreements fice gfquipment provide the minimum future rental
payments as of June 30, 2012, as follows:

Year Ending June 30,

2013 44,508
2014 44,508
2015 44,508
Total Minimum Payments 133,524
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NOTE N — TRANSFER OF FUNDS

The following transfers were made during the year:

Type

Matching

Matching

Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating
Operating

From Fund

General
General
General
Special Revenue
Debt Service
Capital Outlay
Building Fund
General
Building Fund
Capital Outlay
General
Capital Outlay

NOTE O — ON-BEHALF PAYMENT

To Fund

Special Revenue

Special Revenue

Special Revenue
General

General

Debt Service

Debt Service

Debt Service

Construction Fund

Construction Fund

Construction Fund

General

Ppose

Technology Match
Grant Match
Operations
Operations
Operations
Debt Service
Debt Service
Debt Service
Consiarct
Congiounc
Construction
Operations

Amount

7,62
6,500
250
1,239
2,835
147,533
,030,046
90,388
82,673
176,225
A3
38D,
1,820,302

For the year ended June 30, 2012, $5,179,092 bebalf payments were made by the Commonwealth of
Kentucky for the benefit of the District. Paymefus life insurance, health insurance, Kentuckyctea
retirement matching pension contributions, admiatste fees, technology, and debt service were Ipgid
the State for the District. These payments weregeized as on-behalf payments and recorded in the
appropriate revenue and expense accounts. Thegsepes were recorded as follows:

General Fund

Food Service Fund

Debt Service
Total

NOTE P — COMMITMENTS

Renovation at Marion County High School is ongoag of the audit date.

$ 4,246,585

201,321
731,186

$5,179,092

It is anticipated that the

completion of the project will cost approximatel®5%,091. In addition, the partial roof replacemant
Calvary Elementary School is also ongoing as ofaihdit date. It is anticipated that the completdn

this roofing project will cost $158,342.

NOTE Q — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed subsequent events thramhr8ber 24, 2012. The only material subsequent
event is the Marion County School District Finai@arporation issued revenue bonds in the amount of
$4,750,000 to refund the 2005 Series Bonds. Tk&ibt will realize gross savings in excess of $866

as a result of the refunding.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

CAPITAL
OUTLAY BUILDING
FUND FUND

TOTAL
NON-MAJOR
GOVERNMENT
FUNDS

ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
Taxes
Accounts

TOTAL ASSETS 0 0

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Sick Leave
Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities 0 0

Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Restricted - SFCC Escrow
Committed for:
Accrued Sick Leave
Technology Grant Match
Unassigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balance 0 0

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 0 0

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitgs o financial statements.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AN CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES:
Taxes
Earnings from Investments
Intergovernmental - State
Intergovernmental - Federal
Other Sources

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Instructional
Support Services:
Student Support Services
Staff Support Services
District Administration
School Administration
Business Support Services
Plant Operations & Maintenance
Student Transportation
Central Office
Community Service Operations
Facilities Acquisition & Construction
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS(DEFICIT) REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

TOTAL
CAPITAL NON-MAJOR
OUTLAY BUILDING GOVERNMENT
FUND FUND FUNDS
548,212 548,212
288,115 481,834 769,949
288,115 1,030,046 1,318,161
0 0 0
288,115 1,030,046 1,318,161
(464,340) (1,112,719) (1,577,059)
(464,340) (1,11m) (1,577,059)
(176,225) (82,673) (25889
176,225 82,673 258,898
0 0 0

See independent auditor's report and accompanyitgs o financial statements.




MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANDUND BALANCES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FUND FUND
BALANCE BALANCE

JULY 1, 2011 REVENUES EXPENDITURES JUNE 30, 2012
Marion County High School 140,014 579,561 607,397 112,178
St. Charles Middle School 27,578 64,019 70,267 21,330
Lebanon Middle School 22,160 122,820 119,729 25,251
Lebanon Elementary School 7,679 46,315 46,879 7,115
Calvary Elementary School 16,123 31,861 37,387 10,597
Glasscock Elementary School 23,875 46,288 47,788 22,375
West Marion Elementary School 36,192 52,925 63,317 25,800
Total Activity Funds (Due to Student
Groups 273,62: 943,78¢ 992,76« 224,64t
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND FUND BALATE
HIGH SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH CASH ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS FUND
BALANCE BALANCE RECEIVABLE PAYABLE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2011 RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS JUNE 30, 2012 B0, 2012 JUNE 30, 2012 JUNE 30, 2012
Academic Team 854 0 543 311 311
Advanced Placement (AP) 0 27,182 23,936 3,246 3,246
AP English 431 1,564 1,995 0 0
Art Department 1,341 2,904 2,744 1,501 1,501
Athletics 6,518 124,725 123,758 7,485 165 7,320
Autism Classic 0 14,392 14,334 58 58
Band 0 75 0 75 75
Baseball 1,356 11,469 12,595 230 230 0
Beading to Beat Autism 618 111 0 729 729
Beta Club 1,280 17,694 17,623 1,351 1,351
Bobby Jag. Scholarship 132 7 0 139 139
Boys Basketball 9,064 12,306 15,478 5,892 5,892
Boys Soccer 0 570 570 0 0
Boys Tennis 1,518 0 1,103 415 415
Business Ed Dept. 2,002 40,123 40,327 1,798 1,798
Cheerleaders 0 18,658 16,188 2,470 2,400 70
Class Dues 0 40,186 27,753 12,433 12,433
Class of 2011 11,210 0 11,210 0 0
Class of 2012 1,381 1,070 2,451 0 0
Class of 2013 876 1,110 1,986 0 0
Class of 2014 738 1,115 1,853 0 0
Class of 2015 0 1,160 1,160 0 0
Coaches' Fund 2,485 3,156 1,892 3,749 146 3,603
Cross Country 1,044 3,815 4,384 475 475
English SSS 0 889 889 0 0
FBLA 0 18,977 18,977 0 0
FCA 1 144 144 1 1
FCCLA 3,459 22,989 24,604 1,844 1,844
FCCLA Culinary Lab 739 7,084 6,920 903 5 898
FFA 1,521 25,668 23,057 4,132 4,132
FMD 373 3,500 2,646 1,227 1,227
Football 120 17,809 15,821 2,108 1,600 508
Football Camp 1,132 5,566 6,494 204 204
Football Helmets 250 15,610 15,860 0 0
Friends of Rachel 61 0 0 61 61
General 38,242 48,111 62,177 24,176 24,176




Girls Basketball
GB Travel

Girls Soccer
Girls Tennis

G/B Track

Golf

Graphic Designs

Heather Garrett Scholarship

International Club

Key Club

Library

Mock Trail

Nancy Colvin Scholarship
National Honor Society
P.E. Department

Pep Club

Project Lead the Way
Pigskin Classic

ROTC

Snappy Tomato - Athl
Spanish

Special Ed Room
Speech/Drama

Softball

Start Up Money
Student Council
Student of the Week
Swim Team

Teachers' Activity Fund
Threads of Victory
Volleyball

Yearbook Journalism
Youth Advisory Council

Total All Funds
Interfund Transfers

Total

15 7,711 7,726 0 0
0 22,520 22,520 0 0
1,972 753 447 2,278 2,278
1,128 1,613 1,720 1,021 210 811
0 5,660 4,755 905 905
1,734 7,751 8,959 526 526
2,277 2,916 2,674 2,519 2,519
2,812 115 501 2,426 2,426
479 0 0 479 479
1,048 0 0 1,048 1,048
3,954 523 405 4,072 4,072
54 0 0 54 54
1,131 1,036 500 1,667 1,667
597 475 608 464 464
54 0 54 0 0
2,297 2,750 4,090 957 957
617 1,804 1,940 481 481
10,892 18,539 28,464 967 967
1,718 9,556 9,326 1,948 1,948
0 690 0 690 690
31 520 551 0 0
0 3,860 3,184 676 676
326 0 244 82 82
519 4,027 4,546 0 0
0 2,400 2,400 0 0
210 1,608 1,645 173 173
813 640 1,167 286 286
0 3,084 3,906 78 78
281 1,180 1,401 60 60
2,295 12,678 14,973 0 0
2,000 29,818 29,676 2,142 500 1,642
11,522 12,169 9,761 13,930 13,930
492 0 0 492 492
140,014 647,035 669,615 117,434 5,256 2,178

0 (67,474) (67,474) 0 0 0
602,141 117,434 5,256 112,178

140,014

579,561
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FEDERAL GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. Department of Education
Passed-Through Department of Education
Title | - Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title | - Professional Development of Distriotprovement
Title | - Parent Involvement
Title | - School Improvement Grant
Title | - Professional Development of Distriotprovement
Title | - Parent Involvement
Title | - School Improvement Grant
Title | - School Improvement Grant

Title | - ARRA
Title | - ARRA Parent Involvement
Title | Cluster

Migrant Education - State Grant Program
Migrant Education - State Grant Program
Migrant Education Cluster

IDEA - Special Education - Grants to State

IDEA - Special Education - Grants to State véte

IDEA - Special Education - Grants to State - ARR

IDEA - Special Education - Preschool Grants

IDEA - Special Education - Preschool Grants

IDEA - Special Education - Preschool Grants R¥R
Special Education Cluster

Vocational Education - Perkins

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to State

Vocational Education - Perkins

Vocational Education - Basic Grants to State
Vocational Education Cluster

Community Based Work Transition
Community Based Work Transition
Community Based Work Transition Total

Adult Ed. - Retention/Recruiting

Adult Ed. Basic

Adult Ed. Basic - Professional/ Staff Dev
Adult Education Cluster

Title Il - Part A - Teacher Quality Enhancem@naints
Title Il - Part A - Teacher Quality Enhancem@naints
Title Il - Part A Total

Enhancing Education Tech - ARRA
Ed Tech Competitive - ARRA
Federal Ed Tech - Basic
Federal Ed Tech - Basic

Ed Tech Total

21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center
21st Century Learning Center Total

Rural and Low Income Schools
Rural and Low Income Schools
Rural and Low Income Schools Total

Safe and Drug Free Schools

Corp. for National Service Learning

Education Jobs Fund (EduJobs) - ARRA
Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed-Through State Department of Education
National School Lunchroom
National School Lunchroom
School Breakfast Program
School Breakfast Program
Summer Meal Program
Summer Meal Program
Summer Meal Program
Summer Meal Program
Child Nutrition Cluster
Passed-Through State Department of Agriculture
Food Distribution
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

Total Federal Financial Assistance

* Tested as major program
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MUNIS
CFDA PROJECT
NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
84.010 3101 323,224
84.010 3101G 48,887
84.010 3101M 8,080
84.010 3102 427,979
84.010 3102D 12,903
84.010 3102M 571
84.010 3201 2,261
84.010 3202 24,535
84.389 3919 19,108
84.389 3919M 6,361
873,909
84.011 3111 11,763
84.011 3112 77,775
89,538
84.027 3372 655,404
84.027 3372P 7,081
84.391 4249P 7,968
84.173 3431 5,278
84.173 3432 45,799
84.392 4239 3,429
724,959
84.048 3480A 749
84.048 3481 326
84.048 3481A 1,039
84.048 3482 20,397
22,511
84.341 3711 5,991
84.341 3712 27,133
33,124
84.002 3652 9,509
84.002A 3732 46,552
84.002A 3732S 732
56,793
84.367 4011 116,443
84.367 4012 94,691
211,134 *
84.386 4850 2,172
84.386 4860 9,537
84.318 4250 4,652
84.318 4251 2,747
19,108
84.287 5500 9,641
84.287 5500Q 669
84.287 55002 14,000
84.287 5501 63,675
84.287 5501S 2,120
84.287 55028 5,000
95,105
84.358 3500 48,254
84.358 3502 35,742
83,996
84.186 4060 697
94.004 6750 3,223
84.410 4411 748,129 *
2,962,226
10.555 7750002-11 215,124
10.555 7750002-12 688,452
10.553 7760005-11 70,574
10.553 7760005-12 226,023
10.559 7740023-11 30,104
10.559 7740023-12 7,386
10.559 7690024-11 3,169
10.559 7690024-12 784
1,241,616
10.565 057502-10 113,862
1,355,478 *
4,317,704



MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of fédarards includes the federal grant activity of the
Marion County School District and is presentedimnaccrual basis of accounting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance withaheirements of OMB Circular A-133udits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizatioffherefore, some amounts presented in this stdedu
may differ from amounts presented in, or used éngfeparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE B — FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule fair value of the commodities disbursed.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
Section | — Summary of Auditor’'s Results
Financial Statements

Type of audit issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes Xo N
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements aidte Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs?

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes XN
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance fajon programs (unqualified):

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)

(0]

None Reported

of Circular A-1337? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Program or Clu
10.553/10.555/10.559/10.565 School Food Service
84.367 Title 11, Part A — Teacher Quality
Enhancement Grants
84.410 Education Jobs Fund - ARRA
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X sYe No

Section Il — Financial Statement of Findings
No matters were reported.
Section Il — Federal Award Findings and QuestionedCosts

No matters were reported.
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MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2012

There were no prior year audit findings.
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WHITE AND COMPANY, P.S.C.
Certified Public Accountants
219 South Proctor Knott Avenue
Lebanon, Kentucky 40033
(270) 692-2102
(270) 692-3615
Fax (270) 692-2101

Charles M. White, CPA Email cmwcpa@windstream.net

September 24, 2012

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT O F FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the Board of Education
Marion County School District
Lebanon, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of theegouental activities, the business-type activitibs,
aggregate discretely presented component unitdy segor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Marion County School District, as ahd for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the Marion County School Bigts basic financial statements and have issugd o
report thereon dated September 24, 2012. We ctediocr audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of Amesnd the standards applicable to financial audits
contained infGovernment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteates, and
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-P©fijanizations, Appendix | to the Independent
Auditor’s Contract — General Auditing Requirememtppendix Il of the independent Auditor’'s Contract
— State Audit Requirements Appendix Il to the pethelent Auditor's Contract — Audit Extension
Request, and Appendix IV to the Independent Auslitdontract — Instructions for Submission of the
Audit Report..

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Marion County School District is @sgble for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In ptang and performing our audit, we considered Marion
County School District’s internal control over fimdal reporting as a basis for designing our angiti
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opgnén the financial statements, but not for theopse

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness efMlarion County School District’s internal contmler
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not expes opinion on the effectiveness of the Marionr@pu
School District’s internal control over financiaporting.

A deficiency in internal controkexists when the design or operation of a contratsdoot allow
management or employees, in the normal course rdbrp@ing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely bAsmaterial weakness a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that thes a reasonable possibility that a material ratestent

of the entity’s financial statements will not bepented, or detected and corrected on a timelygbasi
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Our consideration of internal control over finaheiporting was for the limited purpose describedhie
first paragraph of this section and was not desigieidentify all deficiencies in internal controver
financial reporting that might be deficiencies,msiigant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. \dendt
identify any deficiencies in internal control ovénancial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouth@heévlarion County School District’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, wWerpeed tests of its compliance with certain praxis

of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agre¢sn@oncompliance with which could have a direat an
material effect on the determination of financi@tement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objectf our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disdose instances of noncompliance or other matteas th
are required to be reported undgovernment Auditing Standards addition, the results of our tests
disclosed no material instances of noncompliancspefcific state statutes or regulation identified i
Appendix Il of the Independent Auditor’'s Contra@tate Audit Requirements.

We noted certain matters that we reported to manageof Marion County School District in a separate
letter dated September 24, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the informatiand use of members of the Kentucky State Committee
for School District Audits, members of the BoardEducation of Marion County School District, the
Kentucky Department of Education, management, adkrhl awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and shoulderaised by anyone other than these specified partie

Sincerely,

White and Company, 9.5,

Certified Public Accountants
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WHITE AND COMPANY, P.S.C.
Certified Public Accountants
219 South Proctor Knott Avenue
Lebanon, Kentucky 40033
(270) 692-2102
(270) 692-3615
Fax (270) 692-2101

Charles M. White, CPA Email cmwcpa@windstream.net

September 24, 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQ UIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EAC H MAJOR
PROGRAM AN ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE INA CCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Members of the Board of Education
Marion County School District
Lebanon, Kentucky

Compliance

We have audited the Marion County School Districimpliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-I3@mplianceSupplementhat could have a direct and
material effect on each of Marion County Schooltidiss major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012. Marion County School District’'s mdgaleral programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying soleedf findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, coniaand grants applicable to each of its major rde
programs is the responsibility of Marion County 8ghDistrict’'s management. Our responsibility és t
express an opinion on Marion County School Disgicompliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordawitle auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicebnancial audits contained Bovernment Auditing
Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the Unitéates; and OMB Circular A-133udits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgaiorat Appendix | to the Independent Auditor's
Contract — General Audit Requirements, Appendixtdl the Auditor's Contract — State Audit
Requirements Appendix Il to the Independent Addit€ontract — Audit Extension Request, and
Appendix 1V to the Independent Auditor’'s Contradinstructions for Submission of the Audit Report.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require Weaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with thestgbeompliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a mégateral program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Marioun§ School District's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedgegaconsidered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Hasisur opinion. Our audit does not provide a lega
determination of Marion County School District’sngpliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Marion County School District congal, in all material respects, with the requirersent
referred to above that could have a direct and mah&ffect on each of its major federal programsthe
year ended June 30, 2012.
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Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Marion County School District is @sgble for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requiretse of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning andgoming our audit, we considered Marion County
School District’s internal control over complianegth the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program in orledetermine the auditing procedures for the psepo
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to &gt report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for tparpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over complianéecordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Marion County School District'seimal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complianegists when the design or operation of a contr@rov
compliance does not allow management or employedke normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nomg@ance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. raterial weakness in internal control over comptians a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in imal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material noncompkawith a type of compliance requirement of a federa
program will not be prevented, or detected andembed, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over comptiarwas for the limited purpose described in thst fir
paragraph of this section and was not designedi¢atify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significaefficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control ova@mpliance that we consider to be material wealasss
as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the informatiand use of members of the Kentucky State Committee
for School District Audits, members of the BoardErfucation of Marion County School District, the
Kentucky Department of Education, management, asdkrhl awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and shouldeaised by anyone other than these specified partie

Sincerely,

White and Company, $.5.C.

Certified Public Accountants
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WHITE AND COMPANY, P.S.C.
Certified Public Accountants
219 South Proctor Knott Avenue
Lebanon, Kentucky 40033
(270) 692-2102
(270) 692-3615
Fax (270) 692-2101

Charles M. White, CPA Email cmwcpa@windstream.net
September 24, 2012

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Members of the Board of Education
Marion County School District
Lebanon, Kentucky

In planning and performing our audit of the finaml@tatements of Marion County School District thoe
year ended June 30, 2012, we considered its inteon#rol in order to determine our auditing process

for the purpose of expressing our opinion on tharftial statements. Our professional standardsreeq
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the financial statismen
are free of material misstatement. We feel thatBhstrict's financial statements are free of mater
misstatement. However, we offer the following sesgfipns that we feel will strengthen your
organization’s internal control structure.

Prior Year Recommendation:

The District must maintain documentation to cleanlyicate the source of an employee’s pay and ensur
that the documentation has been adequately approved

Current Year Finding:

The District maintained adequate documentationdicate the source of an employee’s pay.

Prior Year Recommendation:

As of June 30, 2011, Marion County School Distuets fully collateralized. However, not all of the
collateral pledged by Citizens National Bank wasgneement with the District’'s contract, and Citize
National Bank’s pledged collateral market value \Wess than the contract stated amount. The Distric
must monitor its collateral coverage and the typeotiateral being used to guard its assets.

Current Year Find

The District is adequately monitoring its collalezaverage and the type of collateral being usegutard
its assets.

52



Prior Year Recommendation:

The District continued to have problems concernivglegibility of their cancelled checks. The Dt
should work with their financial institution to ame that cancelled checks are legible.

Current Year Finding:

During the year, the District began printing cheoksa new laser printing. Cancelled checks are now
legible.

Prior Year Recommendation

Auditors reviewed travel expenditures and reimbmesats of the previous Superintendent, Mr. Donald
Smith. We noted no definitive violations of thesBict's policies. However, to help prevent potaint
future abuse, recommendations to strengthen thedds policies were made.

Current Year Finding:

The District revised its Expense Reimbursement cgolfor certified personnel, including the
Superintendent. The revised policy includes expemsmbursements for the Superintendent being
approved by the Board.

Prior Year Recommendation:

While reviewing the activity fund receipts for Saidharles Middle School and Glasscock Elementary
School, we noted multiple instances where recespticthentation only contained one signature. Further
at Glasscock Elementary School, we noted that pieltieceipt forms were not being properly used to
clearly document receipts. We recommend thatealkipts contain two signatures and that multiple
receipt forms be properly used to comply with Rexkbstandards.

Current Year Finding and Recommendation:

A receipt was examined that did not contain twmatgres again this year. All receipts must contaim
signatures. The receipt should be signed by th®opewho received the money and by a second party.
This includes receipts for concessions. The cg8ioa funds received should be documented anddasigne
by at least one of the teachers who worked commessiAgain, the school bookkeeper or school ppalci
would also sign that receipt after verifying theds submitted agreed to the money collected anieto
documentation.

We also noted multiple instances where multipleeigicforms were not being properly used. We
recommend that all money collected be turned itydad matter who is collecting the money or forawh
purpose. For example, money turned in by studiemta fundraiser for a single day’s receipts should
have a multiple receipt form for each teacher tiséd each child’s name and the dollar amount tee/sh
turned in. The teacher should sign for the monefste turns in, and then, typically, the school
bookkeeper or school principal would sign that iigtcas well.

Management Response:

Receipts will be signed by the person receivingrtiomey and by a second party. We acknowledge that
the second party should typically be the schoolkkeeper or school principal. Further, we will use
multiple receipt forms and ensure they are propgolgumented. We will have staff turn money inyail
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Current Year Recommendation:

During the audit, multiple receipts for ballgameegeollections were examined. Requisition and iRéce

of Ticket Sales forms were reviewed and unusuahmaes in the cash short and over column were noted
We investigated this further and concluded that Reguisition and Receipt of Ticket Sales were not
being properly completed. These forms should hapteted by the individual(s) actually collecting
money at the gate. Reasons for variances betweseyrthat should have been collected and actual
money collected, if any, should be fully documentékhen, these forms should be signed by a second
party after being reviewed and verified.

Management Response:

Staff collecting money at gates will complete arghghe Requisition and Receipt of Ticket Salesrfor
Staff will document any variances between money shauld have been collected and actual collections
These forms will then be reviewed and verified lgeaond party and that second party will also Hign
receipt.

We would like to offer our assistance throughow ylear if and when new or unusual situations arise.
Our awareness of new developments when they ocouldvwhelp to ensure that the District is complying
with requirements such as those mentioned above.

We will review the status of these comments dumng next audit engagement. We have already
discussed many of these comments and suggestidhsvaiious District personnel, and we will be
pleased to perform any additional study of thesdtersm or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.

Sincerely,

White and Compang, 9.5.C.

Certified Public Accountants
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WHITE AND COMPANY, P.S.C.
Certified Public Accountants
219 South Proctor Knott Avenue
Lebanon, Kentucky 40033
(270) 692-2102
(270) 692-3615
Fax (270) 692-2101

Charles M. White, CPA Email cmwcpa@windstream.net

September 24, 2012

Members of the Board of Education
Marion County School District
Lebanon, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of theegowental activities, the business-type activitias,
aggregate discretely presented component unitdy segor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Marion County School District foretyear ended June 30, 2012. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about responsibilities under generally accepted amglit
standards (and, if applicable, Government AuditBtgndards and OMB Circular A-133), as well as
certain information related to the planned scope taming of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated April 23, 120 Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information relhte our audit.

Significant Auditing Findings:

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection andfis@propriate accounting policies. The significa
accounting polices used by Marion County Schooltrigtsare described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adoatel the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2012. We noted no transactionsezhieto by the governmental unit during the year f
which there is a lack of authoritative guidanceconsensus. All significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the prgeeiod.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of tharfcial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experiencé pasuand current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates arécpkarly sensitive because of their significartoghe
financial statements and because of the possibiligt future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most saresiéstimate affecting the financial statements:was

Management's estimate of the sick leave liabilitypased on current pay rates and those
currently eligible for retirement. We evaluatee@ tkey factors and assumptions used to
develop the sick leave liability in determining thais reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in degliwith management in performing and completing our

audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulateailvn and likely misstatements identified durihg t
audit, other than those that are clearly triviahd acommunicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management corrected all such misstats. In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and ¢eddy management were material, either indiviguai|

in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s finanstatements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement witmagament is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to ours&attion, that could be significant to the finaaici
statements or the auditor’'s report. We are ple&sedport that no such disagreements arose dthng
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from geament that are included in the management
representation letter dated September 24, 2012.

Management Consultations with Other Independenbéatants

In some cases, management may decide to conshloWier accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” oertain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the goweental unit's financial statements or a deternimat

of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expegson those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check wititaudetermine that the consultant has all the releva
facts. To our knowledge, there were not such dtatgans with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, inclgdhne application of accounting principles and andi
standards, with management each year prior totreteas the governmental unit's auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal coursmiioprofessional relationship and our responseg wer
not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information aquamying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the formtectnand methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with acdoun principles generally accepted in the United

States of America, the method of preparing it hatschanged from the prior period, and the inforomati

is appropriate and complete in relation to our auwdithe financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the emlyihg accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statemémmselves.

This information is intended solely for the useM#dirion County School District and management of
Marion County School District and is not intendedbie and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Sincerely,

White and Compang, 9.5.C.

Certified Public Accountants
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